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INTRODUCTION
The UAE’s strategic location between the West and East can offer attractive possibilities for
companies considering international expansion. Businesses can benefit from opportunities that lie
in the UAE market itself but they can also look beyond, as it offers a gateway to the rest of the GCC
countries, the Middle East and further East.
Differences are anticipated when interacting with other cultures on all levels, from the government
system, the dominant religion and the country’s history, through to people’s mindsets. All these
factors influence in one way or another how business is conducted. On first contact, differences
can seem almost alien, however through study and experience one can begin to understand these
and assimilate similar processes and behavior to integrate.
There are approximately 100 Norwegian companies in the UAE with more expressing curiosity over
the possibilities that could be on offer. There are approximately 1200 Norwegian citizens living and
working in the UAE. This guide has been developed to provide an insight to Norwegian enterprises
and citizens on conducting business and living in the UAE from a Norwegian standpoint.
It aims to give an overview of the UAE’s socioeconomic situation and to educate on cultural
aspects of conducting business, becoming established and the daily life. In addition, it offers a
brief introduction on sectors that could be of interest for Norwegian enterprises, as well as points to
watch out for and tips for a successful establishment.
Every effort has been made to ensure information and figures are as accurate as possible. The
year data applies for and their source are quoted wherever relevant. Information can be sourced,
however, it can prove to be a challenge and a time consuming process to obtain. As a result, some
data is based more on estimates and speculation rather than statistical facts. It should also be
noted that the UAE is a young country and a fast growing economy and processes and regulations
can change at any time to adapt to new requirements.
This document is designed to be used as a guide only and under no circumstances should it be
used as the main basis for making strategic or marketing decisions. It is aimed at a wide audience
and since each case and requirements will be different, extensive research and careful planning
are advisable before dedicating resources and pursuing the UAE market.
We hope this guide will be useful for Norwegian enterprises and that it will serve as a compass
in choosing the right path in the journey of exploring this market. The Royal Norwegian Embassy
in Abu Dhabi and organisations such as Innovation Norway and INTSOK are at the services of
Norwegian enterprises to assist at every step of this journey.
The Royal Norwegian Embassy in Abu Dhabi, June, 2017
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THE UAE
Key Facts and Figures
The United Arab Emirates was officially formed on 2nd December 1971 as an independent
constitutional federation consisting of seven emirates: Abu Dhabi, Dubai, Sharjah, Fujairah, Ras
al-Khaimah, Ajman and Umm al-Quwain.

Abu Dhabi
Dubai
Sharjah
Ajman

Fujairah
Ras al-Khaimah
Umm al-Quwain
Sharjah/Fujairah

The UAE is strategically located in the Arabian Gulf, at the crossroads of trade and commerce
between Europe and the Far East. It is uniquely positioned to service a large and diverse regional
markets that include the Middle East, North- and East Africa, the CIA (Commonwealth of Independent
States) and the Indian subcontinent.
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The UAE is in constant development as it aims to shift to a diversified and knowledge based
economy and to be among the best countries in the world by its Golden Jubilee (2021). In order
to achieve this goal, the UAE government has outlined the country’s national priority sectors in the
UAE Vision 2021.
The National Agenda is centered around six national priorities:
• Cohesive society and preserved identity
• Safe public and fair judiciary
• Competitive knowledge economy
• First-rate education system
• World-class healthcare
• Sustainable environment and infrastructure
Various initiatives have been and are being launched across the country in line with these goals.
One example, is the Ministry of State for Happiness whose mandate is to oversee the UAE plans,
programs and policies to achieve a happier society. Its mission is to have happiness and positivity
as a lifestyle and the higher purpose of government work in the UAE.
Another example is the Emirates Mars Mission a space exploration to Mars program, that aims to
increase knowledge about the planet’s atmosphere and enrich Emirati engineers’ capabilities. The
mission plans to send an unmanned proble to Mars by 2020.

Abu Dhabi
Abu Dhabi has 94% of the UAE’s oil production which currently stands at 3 mill b/d.
With today’s production Abu Dhabi has been projected to have enough oil the next 90 years. Abu
Dhabi has several sovereign wealth funds and the world’s largest assets that combined exceed
USD 1 trillion. It is diversifying the economy, based on a long term sustainable growth in order to
withstand global recession.
Abu Dhabi’s target areas and new economic sectors are based on “The Abu Dhabi Economic
Vision 2030”:
• High technology and heavy industries:
o Abu Dhabi Aircraft Technology, Computer Microprocessors, Ship building
• Future energy industries:
o Masdar City - a carbon neutral city/free zone, IRENA Headquarters
• High-end real estate
• Luxury and cultural tourism
• High profile sporting and music events
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Dubai
Dubai, the second largest emirate, is diversifying and focusing its economy away from oil and
expected to become independent from oil by the year 2015. It aims to become:
• a regional and international banking and finance centre
• a technological distribution and production centre
• a regional hub for international companies
• a major tourist destination, with visitors expected to reach 15 million by 2010
• a freehold property investment hub for foreign investors
Trade related infrastructure:
Dubai has invested heavily in its infrastructure. Port Rashid and Jebel Ali Port is managed by DP
World (Dubai Ports World Company) which is the 4th largest port operator in the world.
Dubai International Airport is working on increasing its capacity from today’s 40 million passengers
to 90 million by 2020. The Dubai World Central Airport is scheduled to be fully operational by 2017
and will be the 4th largest airport in the world with a capacity to receive 120 million passengers per
year and a cargo capacity of 12 million tons. An above the road level metro system of transportation
was also launched in September 2009.

Sharjah, Fujairah, Ras al-Khaimah, Ajman and Umm al-Quwain
These Emirates have few natural resources and are financially dependent on the Federal
government.
Sharjah has limited oil and gas reserves and has therefore been developing new industries and
established numerous industrial zones. The main activities include food, furniture, gold, jewelry,
plastics and building materials. Sharjah was chosen in 1998 as the Cultural Capital of the Arab
Region.
Fujairah is located by the Indian Ocean and has the 2nd largest bunkering port in the world.
Ras Al Khaimah has 3 large cement factories, pharmaceutical industry, a large tile and sanitary
factory and they are investing in real estate and tourism.
Ajman and Umm Al Quwain have limited natural resources but have been making some investments
in the real estate market the recent years.
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Area and geographic data
Area
83,600 km2 including islands, 77,700 km2 exc islands 97% of which is desert

Borders

Elevation Extremes

West and South: Saudi Arabia 475km
South East: Oman 410km
North: Arabian Gulf
East: Gulf of Oman
Islands: More than 200

Lowest: 0m - Sea level
Highest: 1737m - Jabal Jais
in Ras Al Khaimah
Coastline: Over 800km

Climate
The UAE has a subtropical – arid climate with hot summers and warm winters.
The coastal areas are home to the bulk of the population. During the months of May – October the
weather is very hot and humid with temperatures reaching 50°C and humidity of up to 100%. The
winter months from December to March temperatures drop to the range of 14°C and 23°C.
The interior of the country experiences a desert climate, with cool winters and hot arid summers.
The average annual rainfall is 42 mm. Out of all the emirates, Ras al-Khaimah is more temperate,
with 150 mm average annual rainfall
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Natural resources
The discovery of oil 60 years ago transformed the UAE from an impoverished region of small desert
principalities to a modern state with a high standard of living. The UAE has an open economy
with a high per capita income and a sizable annual trade surplus. Successful efforts at economic
diversification however have reduced the portion of GDP based on oil and gas output to 25%.
The UAE is currently estimated to have a capacity of 2.8m barrels/day and despite its plans for
diversification in the economy, it aims to increase this capacity to 3.5m by 2018.

Religion
Religion and life in general are connected in the UAE: culture, politics and way of living are all
influenced by the teachings of Islam. The Islamic faith places great emphasis on behaviours such
as generosity, respect and modesty which most Emiratis will display. Understanding Islam and
the influence it has on everyday life and Emirati business culture is the first step to conducting
successful business in the UAE.
The UAE is tolerant of other religions and the constitution does not discriminate between citizens
based on religious beliefs. Expatriates are free to practice their religion however are also expected
to not interfere in Islamic religious matters or attempt to spread other religions among Muslims.
Christian churches, Sikh temples and a Hindu temple have been built on land donated by the ruling
family of the respective emirate.
Expatriates can live in the UAE for years without being directly affected by the religion however
businesses can normally feel an effect during Muslim holidays and especially during the fasting
month of Ramadan. Offices shut earlier and business activities in general slow down. Businesses
in the food and consumables industry however form an exception to this as an increase in activity
has been observed during this time.

Languages
The official language of the UAE is Arabic, however most people/a high number speak English.
Urdu is the most spoken language due to the large portion of the population originating from South
and South East Asia. Tagalog, the language from the Philippines is also heard daily.
All signs are in Arabic with English translations and most of the media are also in Arabic. Media is
widely available in other languages.
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Currency
TThe local currency of the UAE, the Arab Emirate Dirham is pegged to the US Dollar at a rate of
AED 3.673: US$ 1. Visit the following currency converter for the current conversion rate with NOK:
http://www.visitnorway.com/no/om-norge/reisefakta/before-you-go/currency-and-prices/
valutakalkulator/
The UAE’s population is serviced by just over 50 local and foreign banks. Apart from conventional
banking, a type of banking that is particular to the region is Islamic banking. As the term implies, this
type of activity is in accordance with the principles of sharia, the moral code of Islam, and is applied
practically through the development of Islamic economics. Therefore, investment in businesses
that provide goods or services that are contrary to Islam’s religious law is prohibited. All UAE banks
offer ATM machines and the machine of any bank can be used for banking transactions.
Banks and their activities, such as offering loans, credit and monetary policies etc. are regulated
by the UAE Central Bank.

Working days
The working week starts on Sunday and carries on until Thursday.
Government offices and bank timings: 8:00 am – 15:00pm.
Private offices: Most open 8:00am – 18:00pm however some may have a mid day break with staff
returning to work in the evening after a mid-day break.
Shop hours: Most shops remain open from 9:00am – 22:00pm every day except Fridays when
they open after prayer (prayer is 11:30am – 13:30pm).
Ramadan: The working day ending varies between 13:00pm and 15:00pm depending on the
company policy.

Time
The time difference between Norway and the UAE is three hours during winter and two hours
during summer, as there is no daylight saving in the UAE. For example, in winter, at three o’clock in
the afternoon in Norway, it is already six o’clock in the UAE. During daylight saving in the summer,
when it is three o’clock in the afternoon in Norway, it is five o’clock in the UAE.
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Population distribution
The UAE has the most diverse population among the Middle East countries. The UAE population is
currently approximately 9.2m people (2015 census). Around 80% of the population is comprised of
non-nationals as over 100 nationalities reside in the country. Reports by EIU inform that expatriates
account for more than 85% of the work force.
There are various estimates on the population distribution by ethnic background and exact figures
are not available. What does remain clear however is that UAE nationals are outnumbered by
expatriates. The percentage of UAE citizens is estimated to be anything from 11% up to 19%.
The largest portion of the population (estimated to be around 50%) is comprised of South and
Southeast Asians, predominantly from India followed by Pakistan, Bangladesh and the Philippines.
The majority of the foreign workers, engage in manual labour, administration, secretarial and
retail positions. Other Arabs (non-emirati) are believed to comprise around 23% of the population.
Westerners and other nationalities are thought to be 6-8%.
Similar assessments suggest that around 70% of the UAE population is male, most of which
between the ages of 30-40.
The majority of the population lives in Abu Dhabi (39%), followed by Dubai (29%), Sharjah (18%)
and the rest (14%) is divided among the other four emirates.

UAE Population Distribution by Emirate*
14% Other Emirates

39% Abu Dhabi

18% Sharjah

29% Dubai

*Source: EIU estimates, 2014

Approximate Distribution by Ethnic Origin**
~50
~23
~11-19
~6-8

Westerners
& East Asians

Emirates

Other
Arabs

South
Asians

**Figures based on estimates by various sources, 2014
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Government
The current political system is a combination of old local traditions and a modern (western) political
system.
Each emirate has an independent position within the Federation, its own local government and is
led by a Ruler/Sheikh. Abu Dhabi, the capital, is ruled by Sheikh Khalifa bin Zayed bin Sultan Al
Nahyan since 2004, who is also the president of the UAE. Dubai’s ruler, Sheikh Mohammed bin
Rashid Al Maktoum is also the Vice President and Prime Minister of the UAE.

The Federal Supreme Council
The Federal Supreme Council consists of the 7 hereditary Sheikhs of each Emirate and is the
highest authority in the country.

The Cabinet
Under the Federal Supreme Council comes its executive authority, The Cabinet or Council of
Ministers. This consists of 28 ministers who are responsible for the federal government decision
making. The posts are distributed among the seven emirates. The Cabinet manages all internal
and foreign affairs.

The Federal National Council
The Federal National Council is the parliament that represents the general Emirati people and
advises (but cannot overrule) the Supreme Council and the Cabinet. It consists of 40 members,
20 are elected by the citizens of the UAE and 20 are appointed by the rulers of each emirate. The
members are also drawn proportionately from each emirate.
Further information on the UAE’s Government can be found on the Cabinet’s homepage:
http://uaecabinet.ae/en/Pages/default.aspx#.UzQTMYU2O7o
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Legal System
The UAE is a Civil Law Jurisdiction that is influenced by French, Roman and Islamic Laws (Sharia).
As the country is growing and facing constant changes, regulations ¬are developed to adapt
accordingly. Common law principles are applied to commercial contracts due to the increasing
presence of international law firms which has also resulted in arbitration increasingly becoming the
method for dispute resolution.
Although the Federal law applies to each of the emirates, each emirate also has its own independent
laws that are passed by its ruler and apply only to that emirate. In the event of a conflict between
the Federal and Local law, the Federal law prevails.
The Federal Judicial system comprises of the Federal UAE Courts which are organized into three
branches: Civil, Criminal and Sharia – the moral code and religious law of Islam. The stages of
litigation start from the Court of First Instance followed by the Court of Appeal and finally the Court
of Cassation or Federal Supreme Court.
Only local firms may appear before a court and lawyers have to be licensed by the Ministry of
Justice and by Emiri Decree for the other emirates. In addition they must hold a degree from a
recognized Shariah law college.
Arab expatriate lawyers have been licensed to practice in the UAE however there is a tendency to
restrict these to qualified UAE nationals. Foreign law firms may offer advice as legal consultants,
however are not allowed to plead cases in courts.
Following misunderstandings and ignorance of the local laws by tourists, a Tourism Court has also
been established to handle cases that are a result of cultural and social differences. The jurisdiction
and prosecution department of this court is confined to minor violations and misdemeanours.
In addition, for cases such as inheritance, divorce and custody, a court dedicated to Muslim and
non-Muslim expatriates allows the choice to have their case heard under the law of their country or
religion if the court approves.
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Economy
The UAE is currently one of the fastest growing economies in the world, the speed of its growth
being aided by its strategic and central location which allows easy access to major regional markets.
According to the International Monetary Fund, it is the second largest economy after Saudi Arabia
in the Arab world.
It is an open economy with a high per capita income (estimated at $40,438 for 2015) and a sizable
annual trade surplus. Successful efforts at economic diversification through huge non-oil sector
investments have reduced the portion of the GDP based on oil and gas output with estimates
suggesting oil contributes around a third to the UAE’s GDP. The government has increased
spending on job creation and infrastructure expansion, education, health and tourism. However the
export of oil remains the main engine for growth. Nevertheless, the UAE already has a strategy to
decrease oil dependence by a further 10%.
Lower costs on importing / exporting, faster procedures and less red tape, are in place to boost
economic performance, improve the business environment and make the UAE a more attractive
destination for business investment. Free Trade Zones - offering 100% foreign ownership and zero
taxes - are constantly expanded and help to attract foreign investors.
Dubai’s win of the 2020 World Expo in addition to the prospect of its upgrade to emerging market
status has spurred even more dynamism to its already growing economy.

UAE Doing Buisness Rankings*
85

Trading across
borders
Ease of doing
business
Starting a
business

95
26
95
53
95

UAE
World average

*out of 190 countries

Source: Doing Business 2017
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Free Trade Agreement
The UAE is a member of the Gulf Cooperation Council – GCC which was established in 1981 and
includes the states of Bahrain, Kuwait, Oman, Qatar and Saudi Arabia.
The GCC aims to strengthen the ties between the six states through cooperation and formation
of similar regulations in fields such as economic affairs, trade, customs, tourism, education,
administration and legislation. As such, the GCC has formed the Common Customs Law where
items imported into any of the GCC states and destined for another GCC state (including the UAE)
are only subject to customs duty at the first point of entry.
The objectives of the GCC also include fostering cooperation in the private sector, setting up
joint venture, establishing research centers, as well as promote progress in terms of science and
technology in the fields of industry, mining, agriculture, water and animal resources.
The provisions in the free trade agreement between the EFTA and the GCC apply to both the trade
in goods and services. It covers six main issues: trade in goods, services, competition, intellectual
property and investment, government procurement and administration and dispute settlement.
The Agreement is currently pending ratification by both the GCC and EFTA and will be supervised
by a Joint Committee. Upon entry into force, exporters will enjoy benefits such as elimination of
most import tariffs (except for ones mentioned in the Agreement), protection of intellectual property
rights, and equal treatment for locally and partially foreign affiliated or owned companies.
The full text of the agreement can be accessed on EFTA’s website:
http://www.efta.int/free-trade/free-trade-agreements/gcc
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Norway - UAE relations
The bilateral relations between Norway and the UAE are characterised by political, economic and
commercial cooperation. Norway and the UAE have a very good relationship. His Royal Highness
Crown Prince Haakon visited the UAE in 2010.
Economic relations between the UAE and Norway have been growing steadily over the past years.
There are currently approximately 100 Norwegian companies operating in the UAE with the majority
being from the petroleum and maritime industry sectors.
Jotun Paints is a well-known Norwegian trademark in the Middle East. DNV GL (Det Norske Veritas/
GL) is another. DNV GL is active in a range of sectors, offering advice and assessment services to
help clients safeguard life, property, and the environment. In the maritime field, Wilhelmsen Ships
Services have a strong presence. The oil and energy company Statoil is also present in the UAE.
Innovation Norway has an office in Dubai http://www.innovasjonnorge.no/no/sats-internasjonalt/
regionkart/#map=no_73298 and NORWEP (Norwegian Energy Partners) is represented by Mr.
Nasrollah Gharesifard http://www.norwep.com/Market-info/Markets/United-Arab-Emirates
Norwegian imports from the UAE in 2016 equaled NOK 600 million. Exports to the UAE equaled
NOK 2,1 billion in 2016. The Norwegian export figures are in reality higher, as the service sector is
not included.

THE ROYAL NORWEGIAN EMBASSY IN ABU DHABI
The Royal Norwegian Embassy in Abu Dhabi opened in 1994. The Royal Norwegian Embassy is
playing an active role in maintaining and strengthening the bilateral relations. The Embassy gives
high priority to promoting Norwegian business in the UAE and can offer assistance in the following
areas:
• Source of information about the region
• Dialogue partner about business related issues
• Add official dimension to events, meetings, trade fairs etc.
• Facilitate joint events and networking
• Networking events at the Ambassador´s Residence
• Embassy office meeting room
• Consular assistance: efficient visa process for foreign workers in Norwegian companies
There is a Norwegian consulate in Dubai that can assist you with similar services.
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DOING BUSINESS
Islam
The UAE is a Muslim country and as such is sensitive to Islamic traditions. It is, however, very
western oriented, maintaining an open society that is extremely tolerant to other faiths and the
multi-cultural environment it promotes.
However, a key issue to bear in mind is that, the Emirates as well as other Gulf states remain
heavily influenced by the teachings of Islam. There is little separation between religion, life in
general and business – they are all interlinked in a way that is alien to most western business
people. Great respect to local religious sensitivities must be shown at all times.
Religion has played an important role in shaping society and culture and the influence of Islam is
evident in everyday life and business. Respect, generosity and modesty are important values which
most Emiratis will display and must be shown in return.

Types of companies
The question,’ Who am I dealing with?’ is critical when thinking about company structures and how
they impact on the interface with any local organization.
Are you dealing with the subsidiary of an international organization headquartered outside the
UAE? If so, they are likely to be heavily influenced by the approach, processes and methodologies
of the parent company – and the key staff are likely to be expatriates.
However, if you are dealing with a locally owned business you are likely to find that they are familyowned and controlled. Key positions will often be filled by trusted family members.
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Hierarchy
As with most family-owned organizations, the company will be organized along strongly hierarchical
lines with the majority of power being held at the top by the senior, usually older, male family
members. However there are changes in the Gulf with regards to women in senior positions. The
UAE is the leading country in the Gulf in this regard.

Hierarchy in local companies
Foreign part of organisation:
Different levels of
foreign experts

Arab Hierarchy:
Different levels of Arab
decision makers

Different levels of
foreign subordinates

The figure of the pyramid depicts the organization in the way a foreigner would perceive it on first
(second, third or even tenth) contact. In reality, the foreign businessman only meets the operative
part of the organization (green and/or beige). The green colour represents the lower levels of
the organisation such as workers and managers that work directly with them. The beige colour
represents middle managers who can be experts in a field and responsible for the execution of
decisions by the top-level management (red) which are the real decision makers. The latter part
of the organisation is partially hidden and access may be severely restricted. It is important to try
to get access to the key decision-makers, even if you are initially being dealt with by expatriate
employees. All major decisions will be made at the top and you will need influence at that level. As
for the smaller Norwegian companies many of them will only interact with the lower parts.
For a small to medium enterprise, it is very common for the first few contacts at least to deal with
middlemen when approaching a local company. These middlemen are usually expatriates and
most commonly from South Asian countries such as India and Pakistan. Due to their relatively
limited position in making decisions it can be difficult to arrange meetings with these or to get past
them and approach the level of decision makers.
Having a Norwegian background it is not always easy to realise and recognise that other societies
have hierarchies. It is important that contact is always made with those of the same hierarchical
level. Although Norwegians rarely emphasize their place in a hierarchy, it is common elsewhere
for example by using titles when you address someone. If someone is a doctor you should use
the title Dr. followed by his/her name. Age and family background is also of major importance in a
hierarchical society.
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It is crucial to have an agent/sponsor that has the right connections and understands your product
who is willing to take you “behind” the scenes and introduce you to the decision makers. A good
sponsor will be able to obtain early market information. At the same time, it is very important to have
good legal framework from the beginning in order to be able to close the relationship or change the
agent if it becomes necessary.

Building relationships
Relationships are all-important and meetings will often start with a lot of seemingly trivial small-talk.
Do not underestimate how important this relationship building process is to the overall success of
your project. Make time to chat – the rewards will flow in the long-run. Always remain patient and
never appear pushy - you as a person are more important than your product initially.
Westerners spend the majority of time in a meeting discussing business and less time on
relationships. Arabs tend to spend more time building relationships and getting to know you while
business comes after. Their philosophy is to do business with the person, not the company, after
all companies are made by people.

Meetings and timings
Meetings can be confusing affairs as they are often subject to unforeseen interruptions and
alterations. The standard western approach of meeting room, punctuality, agenda, action points
etc. may nt necessarily be followed. It is not uncommon to arrive at your meeting to find your host
in a meeting with several other people and that these other people could be meeting your host
about completely disconnected issues. This process can make meetings very lengthy and it can be
a little frustrating if you don’t get the complete attention you feel you deserve. Setting up meetings
at the up-market local hotels where you can serve coffee and refreshments – and where you are
less likely to be interrupted as frequently – is a good option.
Booking meetings can be a challenge. Do not expect confirmations until a few days before the
planned meeting. Meetings should never be booked too long in advance as the requests may be
forgotten or overlooked. Such requests must be followed up and reminders may have to be made
several times.

Insha’llah
Insha’ Allah – “If God is willing” is a common expression widely used by muslims and Arabs when
referring to things happening in the future. Muslims believe that whatever one plans to do will
only occur if it is God’s plan. Insha’Allah is therefore used in meeting contexts/about time and
appointments as to say that the utmost must be done to be in time but “God has the final control”.
Things can happen that may delay you that are out of your control. Punctuality is therefore variable
and a meeting scheduled to start at 10am might start on time but may well start an hour or more
late. It is also difficult to predict the end time of a meeting with any degree of accuracy - which
can make it difficult to visit the UAE and arrange three meetings in the morning, followed by three
meetings in the afternoon. Three meetings a day is probably the safest option.
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Local dress
The local dress from the emirates as in many Arabic countries, derives from the Bedouin culture.
Veils or head scarves and long sleeved “robes” or cloaks are worn by both men and women. This
has a practical solution for protection against the harsh sun rays.
Women wear a long black cloak called the abaya and a hijab, a veil that covers the neck and hair.
Some Emirati women can also be seen wearing a niqab which also covers the mouth and nose
and only allows the eyes to be visible. Some women may also wear the hijab in such a way that
covers the entire face. Traditionally the abaya is entirely black, however lately many may be seen
with colourful embroideries around the sleeves or even the back.
Men on the other hand wear a white cloak, the kandoora, along with a usually white headscarf, the
gotra, which is held in place by the egal, a black rope. Younger Emiratis tend to wear white and
red gotras, which they tie around the head instead of using the egal to keep it in place. On special
occasions such as ceremonies, a bisht will be worn over the kandoora, this is a see-through black
cloak with golden embroidery.

Business dress
This is an immaculate criterion for impression and appearance is an important factor in a non-verbal
culture (a culture where other factors than only words are important for communication). Dress
conservatively, but very smartly. Modesty and conservativeness is the moral in Islam which means
that women should cover their legs and arms. The dress style is quite formal in all the Gulf States.

Women in Business
The situation in the UAE is very different from in neighbouring Saudi Arabia where opportunities for
women are quite restricted. For example, in Saudi Arabia, women are not permitted to drive and
men and women do not mingle in public.
However, there is an increasing sense of entrepreneurship amongst Gulf women, which means that
conditions have changed considerably in the past ten years or so. The UAE is the leading country
in the Gulf region in this respect.
There are quite a few female leaders/directors of larger companies, and few are participating
actively in politics and that have been appointed Ministers in the Federal Government. For example,
Sheikha Fatima bint Mubarak, wife of the late President Sheikh Zayed bin Sultan Al Nahyan is the
founder and is President of the General Women’s Union (GWU), as well as the chairperson for the
Family Development Foundation. Another example is the Minister of State, Reem Al Hashimy who
is also the managing director of Dubai’s 2020 Expo and chairperson for Dubai Cares, a charity for
improving access to education for children in developing countries, the Emirates Competitiveness
Council which aims to promote sustainable growth and prosperity for the UAE and the National
Bureau of Statistics.
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SETTING UP A BUSINESS
Business Models
The company’s activities will determine the right business model to adopt and the most appropriate
emirate. It is important to know where trading will take place and with who. Are the customers
everywhere in the UAE, a particular emirate, a free zone or outside the UAE? Keeping these
issues in mind can be a critical step in the future success of a company. For example, the 100%
ownership offered by setting up in a free zone is an attractive option, however, strictly speaking,
trading is only permitted within the free zone and not with the rest of the UAE. Furthermore, it
always works to the advantage of the company to have someone who understands the company’s
services / products and goals so they can provide guidance through the process and advise on the
right business model that meets the company’s needs.
All costs related to setting up and maintaining the business should be planned beforehand.
These include costs for licensing, sponsorship fees and residency visas, through to travel and
accommodation expenses as it may take a few trips before the business is fully operational. It may
take some time before the UAE office generates revenue to sustain itself so the costs to support
its expenses should be planned for. It is good business sense to conduct a market evaluation
beforehand to identify where market opportunities lie and set out the right business and strategy
plan for the UAE office. Employing the right people is also vital as there are substantial costs
associated with their settlement in the UAE. Support in making these choices is available, but the
final decision is down to the company itself and its directors and managers who will bear all if not
most responsibilities.
A foreign company that wishes to establish a presence in the UAE and sell its products or services
within the UAE must enter into a contractual agreement with a UAE national. This is a requirement
by the UAE Commercial Companies Law which in addition, specifies that the UAE national must
own at least 51% of the company. Companies in the oil and gas industry, producers of electricity
and gas and companies involved in water treatment and companies established in one of the free
trade zones are exempt from this, however other requirements may apply.
The time, procedures, fees, minimum capital and number of shareholders required will depend on
the type of business structure chosen.
Certain company types can only be established by UAE nationals. These include:
General Partnership: Can be established by two or more partners who are fully responsible for
the company’s liabilities.
Limited Partnership: Similar to a general partnership with the difference that, in addition to two
or more fully liable partners, it also includes one or more limited partners. Their liability is limited to
their contribution to the partnership’s capital.
Partnership Limited by Shares: Similar to a limited partnership however the limited partners’
liability only extends to the value of the share capital they have subscribed. The minimum capital
the company must have is 500,000 AED.
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The types of business a foreign company may establish in the 49/51 structure are:
Limited Liability Company: Can be formed with a minimum of 2 and maximum of 50 partners. The
liability of each partner is limited to their shares in the company’s capital. This is a popular option
for foreign investors who have a view of establishing a long-term presence in the local market. A
minimum share capital may be required depending on the size and activities of the company. The
Department of Economic Development of the emirate the company will be established in must be
consulted with regards to the minimum share capital required.
Public and Private Shareholding (Joint Stock): The chairman and majority of directors must be
UAE nationals and as a large minimum capital is required they are mostly suitable for large projects
or operations. For a public company 10m AED is required (~$2.72m) and for a private 2m AED
(~$545,000). Local banks, insurance and generally companies offering financial services must be
run as public shareholding companies. Foreign ones however may open a branch or representative
office.
Joint Venture Company: This is formed when a foreign party and local party are bound by a
contractual agreement where the local party is licensed to engage in the activity agreed upon.
Although the local participation must be at least 51% the profit and loss distribution can be
prescribed.

Service Agents / Sponsors
The following structures may be set up with 100% ownership by a foreign entity. However they must
appoint a local service agent (which is different to a commercial agent) and sometimes referred to
as a sponsor. The service agent must be either a UAE national or a company owned 100% by a
UAE national. The service agent is either paid a lump sum or a percentage from profits but does
not have any managerial authority in the company’s operations. The agent does not vote or make
decisions as far as the company’s operations and is not liable for any of its obligations or liabilities.
The service agent’s role is to assist in practical matters such as interacting with the local authorities,
sponsoring the foreign company for its license application, its employees, obtaining entry permits
and employment visas, labour cards, etc.
Branch Office of a Foreign Company: This is an extension of a parent company and is not
considered a separate legal entity. It may only engage in the same activities as the ones of the
parent company. The branch office may also carry out as part of its business the import of its parent
company’s products only if the parent company is also involved in the manufacture.
Representative Office of a Foreign Company: A representative office is similar to a branch with
the difference that it is not allowed to engage in income earning activities. Its role is to promote the
parent company’s activities and sales, gather information, facilitate contacts and market the parent
company. Usually only three to four employees may be sponsored.
Sole Proprietorship (Civil Company): Reserved for establishing professional firms or companies
with artisan activities. Again the number of employees can be limited.
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Business Licenses
Generally, the following types of business licenses are available in the UAE:
Trading or Commercial license: For any and all kind of trading activity where profit is gained
through buying and selling of goods and services. The holder is allowed to import, export, store and
distribute the items specified in the license.
Industrial license: Industrial and manufacturing activities where the objective is either discovering
natural resources or transforming raw materials into manufactured or semi-manufactured products.
Professional license: Professions, services and craftsmen where practice of the profession
depends on physical and mental efforts rather than the need of monetary capital.
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Free Trade Zones
Establishing a business entity in one of the numerous Free Trade Zones can be an attractive
option for foreign investors and businesses. All seven Emirates already have, or are developing
these economic zones with the purpose of attracting foreign investors. They offer incentives and a
dedicated infrastructure not available elsewhere in the country.
Among the prime attractions of Free Trade Zones are 100% foreign ownership and a guaranteed
exemption from corporate taxation to businesses that set up in their territories. Additional advantages
include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

100% import and export tax exemptions
100% repatriation of capital and profits
No corporate taxes for 15 years, renewable for an additional 15 years
No personal income taxes
Less burdensome documentation, mostly in English
Assistance with labour recruitment and additional support services such as sponsorship
and housing

Most free zones cater to a specific field of business activity. A dedicated infrastructure is formed for
specific industries to foster areas of specialisation, thereby increasing productivity. Free zones are
also located strategically, near ports, airports, warehouses and storage facilities, thus increasing
efficiency for trade and commerce.
Each free zone is governed by an independent Free Zone Authority which is responsible for issuing
Free Trade Zone operating licenses, regulating its own set of rules and laws, assisting companies
establish their business within their zone. Most free zones also act as the sponsor for employees
and interact with the relevant authorities for all necessary paperwork.
A company established in a free zone is not allowed to trade outside the free zone in the UAE. If a
company wishes to do so, it must either open a branch outside the free zone that is licensed by the
Department of Economic Development or appoint a service agent. The branch will have to meet the
requirements as specified by the UAE Commercial Companies Law.
The types of companies that can be established in a Free Trade Zones are:
Free Zone Company: Limited liability company owned by one person or non-individual (company).
Free Zone Establishment: Limited liability company owned by two to five shareholders, these can
be individuals or non-individuals (companies) or a combination of both.
Both types above require a minimum capital that can range from 150,000 AED (~$8,000) to 1m
AED. (~$272,000) depending on the free zone one wishes to establish their company.
Branch of a Company: A branch is considered the same legal entity as its parent company. There
is no requirement for minimum capital.
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A fee is required for registration and for issuing the license, the amount of which will vary depending
on the free zone. Some free zones also require that a company leases premises within that zone,
such as an office, warehouse or land, depending on the activity. These must be operational and
fully manned within an agreed space of time. The lease is renewable annually along with the
license, usually three months before expiry.
A few free zones offer hot desks as an alternative (fully equipped instant offices or space within
offices) that can be used when needed. Fees will depend on frequency of use and terms can be
flexible. In addition most free zones offer additional facilities such as meeting rooms. The area of
specialisation of the free zone will determine what types of license are available. As the free zones
develop, some offer additional licenses to the three main ones described below:
Trading or Commercial license: For any and all kind of trading activities where profit is gained
through buying and selling of goods and services. The holder is allowed to import, export, store and
distribute the items specified in the license.
Industrial license: Industrial and manufacturing activities where the objective is either discovering
natural resources or transforming raw materials into manufactured or semi-manufactured products.
Professional license: Professions, services and craftsmen where practice of the profession
depends on physical and mental efforts rather than the need of monetary capital.
A list of the various free zones is offered below grouped by the emirate they are located:
Dubai
Dubai Airport Free Zone
Dubai Auto Zone
Dubai Cars and Automotive Zone
Dubai Design District
Dubai Flower Centre
Dubai Gold and Diamond Park
Dubai Healthcare City
Dubai Industrial City
Dubai International Academic City
Dubai International Financial Centre
Dubai Internet City
Dubai Knowledge Park
Dubai Logistics City
Dubai Maritime City
Dubai Media City
Dubai Multi Commodities Centre
Dubai Outsource Zone
Dubai Production City
Dubai Science Park
Dubai Silicon Oasis
Dubai Studio City
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Dubai Textile City
Energy and Environment Park
International Humanitarian City
International Media Production Zone
Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority
Jumeirah Lakes Towers Free Zone
National Industries Complex
Abu Dhabi
Abu Dhabi Airport Business City
Abu Dhabi Global Market
Abu Dhabi Ports Company
Higher corporation for specialized economic zones/ ZonesCorp
Khalifa Industrial Zone - KIZAD
Masdar City
TwoFour54
Sharjah
Hamriyah Free Zone
Sharjah Airport Free Zone
USA Regional Trade Center Free Zone
Fujairah
Fujairah Creative City
Fujairah Free Zone (FFZ)
Ras Al Khaimah
RAK Investment Authority Free Zone
RAK Maritime City
Ras Al Khaimah Free Trade Zone
Ras Al Khaimah Media Free Zone
Ajman
Ajman Free Zone
Umm Al Quwain
Umm Al Quwain Free Zone Authority
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Commercial Agents
Apart from establishing a local presence in the UAE, foreign companies have the option to have
a commercial agent represent their interests in the UAE. The appointment of commercial agents,
sales representatives, and distributors is regulated by the UAE Commercial Agencies Law.
According to this law a Commercial Agent must be a UAE national or a company owned 100%
by UAE nationals and registered with the Ministry of Economy. The agency agreement between
the Commercial Agent and Foreign company (in this case referred to as Principal) must also be
registered at the Ministry of Economy in order for it to be recognised under UAE law and protect the
Agent. The Agent is considered to be in a relatively weak position compared to the Principal and as
such the Law tends to be in favour of and protect the Agent.
The agent is entitled to commission on sales of products within their territory to which they are
entitled to exclusivity (normally one or more of the emirates). This is the case whether the sales
have been made through the agent or not, unless otherwise agreed beforehand.

The Agreement
The process of choosing an agent and entering into an agreement should never be rushed as the
agreement is a binding contract. It is advisable to seek expert advice and for both parties to perform
a background or reputation check.
Termination of an agent agreement can be a cumbersome process especially if the Principal and
Agent disagree. The agent is entitled to significant compensation by the Principal if the agreement
is terminated or not renewed without justification. In this case, an agent can also prevent the
Principal from appointing a replacement. It is not set out clearly in the Law how payment for
compensation is calculated, but the duration of the agreement, net profit generated by the agent
and his demonstrable efforts in promoting the Principal’s services or products, are often taken into
consideration.
An agreement can normally be terminated with the expressed agreement of both parties. If the
parties do not agree, a valid reason for termination must be presented to the Commercial Agencies
Committee to decide. There are no clear specifications as to what qualifies as a “valid reason”.
There are concrete examples that a valid reason can mean action or non-action on part of the
agent which results in damage of the reputation of the Principal, breach of the Agency Law, failure
to honor any terms of the agreement and if the agent takes part in activities that compete with those
of the Principal. The decision of the Committee can be appealed before UAE courts.
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Authorities
All businesses must register with the Economic Department and Chamber of Commerce
corresponding to the emirate in which activities will take place and the Ministry of Economy.
Certain types of companies will also need approval from the relevant ministries such as:
Banks and financial institutions: Central Bank
Insurance companies: Commissioner of Insurance - Ministry of Economy and Commerce
Manufacturing: Ministry of Finance and Industry
Education: Ministry of Education
Printing, Publishing and Broadcasting: Ministry of Information and Culture
Medicinal products: Ministry of Health
Oil and gas production companies must go through special procedures to register which can vary
depending on the emirate in which registration will take place.
It is every company’s obligation to renew their registration annually with all three authorities
mentioned above. The fees will vary depending on the type of entity established and the authority.
Banks, insurance companies, public and private shareholding, limited liability, branches and
partnerships limited by shares will normally have their accounts audited annually. Companies may
choose any date as the accounting year-end and accounts can be kept in English, Arabic or both.
There is no requirement to file taxes except for banks and oil and gas companies.

The Chamber of Commerce
Membership with the relevant Chamber of Commerce can offer useful advantages especially for
newly established companies though their services and network. The Chamber can be consulted
regarding local market information, can offer a credit rating service through business information
reports, legal services such as drafting contracts and even insurance for companies’ employees
(Dubai).
The Dubai Chamber has helped establish a variety of business groups divided by industry and
business councils divided by country to encourage cooperation and networking. Members can join
the groups and councils of their interest.
The websites for the Chambers of Commerce in Dubai and Abu Dhabi can be accessed here:
http://www.dubaichamber.ae/csrlabel/
http://www.abudhabichamber.ae/English/Pages/Default.aspx
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Customs
A duty rate of 5% applies on dutiable goods however numerous consumer goods, commodities and
raw materials are exempt. The duty is based on the cost, insurance and freight (CIF) value of the
imported goods. Alcoholic beverages are subject to a 100% import duty and tobacco products to
50%. Imports can only be handled by UAE registered agents who must have a valid importer code
from the Customs Authority.
Dubai Customs clears approximately 80% of all imports into the UAE and Abu Dhabi Customs
around 10%. The entire customs declaration can be made electronically for both of these Emirates,
a service that makes particularly Dubai’s customs clearance times among the shortest in the world
(as short as a few minutes). In some cases, clearance is possible before shipments arrive in Dubai,
provided that cargo documents are on time and in order.
Clear labelling is required which must include production and expiry dates and printed on the
original package or label. Arabic labelling is a requisite and can be printed on a sticker.
The origins of all animal fats must be stated. The following items need to be included on the labels,
(however when planning to export products to the UAE we recommend checking for the latest
regulations with the buyer):
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Brand name
Ingredients (arranged according to weight or volume)
Manufacturers’ name and address
Net weight or volume
Country of origin
Lot (batch) number
Special storage and preparation instructions, if any
Display of nutritional information is optional (except for products with special uses such
as baby food, etc)
• Production and expiration dates must be clearly printed, embossed or engraved; and
should be difficult to erase
• With few exceptions, all food items are required to have at least half of their shelf life
remaining at the time of import
The duty rate is the same across all emirates and each emirate has its own Customs authority.
Additionally, as the UAE is a member of the Gulf Cooperation Council, importers to the UAE can
benefit by the GCC Common Customs Law, where items imported into any of the GCC states and
destined for another is subject to customs duty only once, at the first point of entry into the GCC.
Links:
UAE Federal Customs Authority:
http://www.customs.ae/En/UAE-Customs/Pages/AuhCustoms.aspx
Dubai Customs:
http://www.dubaicustoms.gov.ae/en/Pages/default.aspx
Abu Dhabi Customs:
http://www.auhcustoms.gov.ae/Home.aspx
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Labour Law
The Labour Law of the UAE governs employer / employee relations in aspects such as hours of
work, leave, termination, restrictions on the employment of juveniles and women , wages, safety
and protection of employees, medical and social benefits and repatriation. The law applies to both
foreign and local staff and employees working in the UAE with a few exceptions outlined in the law.
If the employee is a UAE national, the employment contract may be entered into any time. For an
expatriate employee however, to be employed in the UAE the employer must seek approval by the
Ministry of Labour . In addition, a security may be required by some employers such as a bank
guarantee for end of services benefits and employee repatriation costs.
The law in general is protective of employees and in the case of conflicting contractual provisions
agreed under another jurisdiction, it overrides them unless these benefit the employee.
Formation of trade unions is not allowed. In the case of a dispute between the employer and
employee the Ministry of Labour and Social Affairs intervenes to resolve the matter. A decision by
the Ministry can be appealed and the case can be taken to court. Strikes and public demonstrations
are also restricted.
Business owners are not considered employees. Foreign partners are sponsored as investors
rather than employees by the entity they partner with (local partner, service agent, free zone). If
the investor’s name is on the trade license he deals directly with immigration rather than through
the Labour Office. If, in addition to being partner, however he is also an employee, he will be
considered as an employee for the work he is doing for the company.
The maximum working hours are forty eight per week or 8 per day. This may be increased for
employees in the service sectors. Employees in executive or administration positions may be
expected to work long hours without overtime pay. Break time is not included when calculating
working hours and employees must not work for more than five consecutive hours without a
break except for the case of jobs where continued attendance is required. The terms for these are
specified by the Ministry.
A copy of the labour law can be found here: http://www.mol.gov.ae/newcontrolpanel2010/
Attachments/21062012/labour%20law%20no.8%20year%201980.pdf
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Emiratisation
As a country where expatriates outnumber the local population, the UAE relies heavily on
expatriate labour. The Economist Intelligence Unit reports expatriates account for more than 85%
of the workforce (2014)*. Figures by the UAE National Bureau of Statistics in 2013 indicate that
unemployment among the total number of UAE nationals ready to work stood at 20%. In order to
promote employment of UAE nationals, both in the public and private sectors, the UAE government
introduced the Emiratisation programme in 2004. Other Gulf countries such as Bahrain, Oman,
Qatar and Saudi Arabia have introduced similar programmes.
The Emiratisation programme applies to both local and international companies operating in the
UAE. It is not currently expected to apply to free zones, however as each free zone has different
requirements the authority of each free zone should be consulted. A company that has 50 employees
or more, must employ a minimum percentage of UAE nationals as set out by the UAE federal law.
The exact percentage varies depending on the activities of the company. However, there is a strong
desire for this to be increased in the next few years so when employing staff companies should
check with the Ministry of Labour.
The programme is tied in with the UAE’s aim to diversify and shift to a knowledge based economy.
The aim is to encourage UAE nationals to continue to higher education, by creating jobs, by inciting
private companies to hire UAE nationals and by nurturing an environment that will support local
entrepreneurs.
Although Emiratisation has been around for more than a decade, results are so far seen mostly
in the public sector. This is partly due to the higher salaries and additional benefits offered by
government and semi-government entities. There are several government-sponsored, initiatives
under the Emiratisation programme that are aimed at increasing Emirati participation in the private
sector.
A foreign company can benefit from Emiratisation, since having locals on board can be an efficient
way to connect with government and local enterprises. Implementing the Emiratisation programme,
however, can come with challenges typically faced by a multicultural workplace such as cultural
issues, training and performance, pay and benefits expectations.
The National Human Resources Development and Employment Authority (Tanmia) and the Ministry
of Labour are responsible for further developing guidelines for Emiratisation. It is wise to consult
with both authorities regarding employment of UAE nationals to ensure the correct quota is met as
any company found not meeting the requirements can face a fine.
The National Human Resources Development and Employment Authority (Tanmia) and the Ministry
of Labor are responsible for developing further Emiratisation guidelines. It is wise to consult with
both authorities regarding employment of UAE nationals to ensure the correct quota is met as any
company found not meeting the requirements can face a fine.
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*http://country.eiu.com/article.aspx?articleid=341524818&Country=United%20Arab%20Emirates&
topic=Summary&subtopic=Fact+sheet
Links:
Council of Ministers Resolutions on Training and Employment of UAE citizens in the private sector:
http://www.mol.gov.ae/newcontrolpanel2010/Attachments/28092008/
TrainingAndEmploymentOfUAECitzenInThePrvateSector.hTm
Emirates Nationals Development Programme:
http://www.endp.ae/
National HR Development and Employment Authority:
http://www.tanmia.ae/English/Pages/default.aspx
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Professional networking in the UAE
“ It is not about your products , it is all about who you know “
- A well-known saying about how to succeed in business in the Emirates.

Business groups

You can find a range of professional business networking groups in the UAE. Business groups can
help you to get access to local decision-makers and the groups can be effective venues for getting
referrals in the UAE market.
Large global business groups are represented, such as BNI (Business Network International), which
has several chapters in Dubai and Abu Dhabi. In addition, business people of the same nationality
tend to establish their own business group in the UAE, like the Norwegian Business Group, the
British Business Group etc. Other groups may be limited to areas of interest or in membership. An
example for the latter is Heels & Deals, which is reserved for business women.
Common to most business groups is in order to get access, an invitation is needed from someone
who is already a member of the group. Some groups meet up on a weekly basis while others once a
month. The groups may operate with an annual membership fee plus a fee for each meeting. Once
granted access to one group, it is easier to access other groups.
If you are new to the world of professional networking, the Referral Institute in Dubai teaches
business professionals how to get the most of networking events.
Useful links:
BNI (Business Network International): http://www.bni-me.com
British Business Group in Abu Dhabi (BBG): http://britishbusiness.org
British Business Group in Dubai and the Northern Emirates (BBG): http://bbg.olasoft.com/index.html
French Business Group in Abu Dhabi (FBG): http://www.fbgabudhabi.com/en
International Business Womens Group (IBWG): http://www.ibwgdubai.com
Norwegian Business Group in Dubai and Abu Dhabi (NBG): http://www.nbguae.com
Referral Institute in Dubai: http://www.referralinstitute-me.com
Business Luncheon at the Norwegian Seamen’s Centre
The Norwegian Seamen’s Centre in Dubai hosts a weekly business luncheon. The business
luncheon is open to all, however, expect a minor cover charge upon entry.
For timings: http://sjomannskirken.no/dubai
Business Councils
Some countries have established a Business Council in the UAE instead of a Business Group. The
councils are often more formal and have a closer cooperation with the Emirati authorities.
Useful links:
Danish Business Council - http://www.danesindubai.com
Finnish Business Council - http://www.fbc.org.ae
Swedish Business Council - http://www.swedchamb.com
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Legal Aspects
Remember that the UAE is a young country and that laws are constantly changing to adapt to
international standards. Like anywhere, it is good practice to become familiar with the local laws
when setting up a business in another country and before making a final decision on anything to
avoid problems later on. Entering into a lawsuit in a foreign country where one is unfamiliar with
the legal procedures can have the added complexities of differences in regulations. The outmost
should be done to avoid finding oneself in a situation such as being fined, jailed, deported and
banned from returning to the country. In many cases all four will apply.
Although the UAE Commercial Companies Law provides guidance to courts on how to treat
bankruptcy, the laws are unclear and largely untested. They are open to interpretation by the court
depending on the case. Bankruptcy in itself is not a crime in the UAE, however a trader, director
or manager may be found guilty of offences connected to bankruptcy. The court has the authority
to hold the individuals behind the company responsible. Criminal investigations may take place in
cases of financial disputes.
The law states that a company may file for bankruptcy voluntarily within 30 days of ceasing to pay
its debts, however failure to do so, makes the directors of the company liable for bankruptcy by
default. This is a criminal offence under the Penal Code. Involuntary bankruptcy is also possible but
if the court finds the debtor is able to pay, the creditor faces a fine for unsuccessful petition.
Cheques and specifically post-dated cheques are widely used in the UAE for payment of utilities
and invoices. However payment with cheques should be made with caution as bouncing cheques
is a criminal offence. If issuing post-dated cheques, records and bank balances should be kept as
they will serve as proof for genuinely believing the funds were available on their due date.
The agreement signed with a sponsor or agent is a binding contract and might be written in Arabic.
A reliable translator and attorney should be consulted before signing. A company should be aware
of the agent’s rights as he/she is entitled to commission on sales of products within their territory
whether the sales have been made through the agent or not. In addition, the agent normally has
exclusivity over his territory which can extend to more than one emirate. An amicable solution
should be sought in the event of a dispute as it could end up with major consequences otherwise,
with the foreign entity having to pay out large sums as compensation.
As attractive an option it may be to set up a business in the UAE, the decisions and process
should never be rushed. All the above should be considered carefully before, during and after
establishment. Besides, during its operation, constant reviews should take place. A potential exit
strategy could also be set out beforehand as a contingency plan for events such as if the parties
are in disagreement or there are issues with bankruptcy.
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Keys to Success
1. Build broad relations. Personal relationships are very important in business. It pays off to build
and cultivate those relationships. In addition, it can be wise to expand your network beyond the
single decision maker in a given business relationship. Firstly, it will give you additional feet to stand
on in the event of a change of personnel. Secondly, having common acquaintances who can vouch
for you may have a positive effect on business.
2. Choose your sponsor or partner carefully. When entering the market, teaming up with the
right sponsor can make or break the business. Again it is about the network you have access to
and the sponsor should have the right connections and be able to introduce you to key decisions
makers. Even if you have the best business proposition, if you cannot get past the middlemen you
will normally interact with in your first encounters with a local company, the opportunity could be lost.
3. Know the culture. Take the time to familiarize yourself with how business is conducted in the
UAE. In some aspects, it can differ quite a bit from what you are used to from Norway. Important
areas include negotiations, communicating in a timely manner and understanding the message that
the other party is trying to convey.
4. Plan ahead and be prepared. Take the time to review the business models available and decide
which one fits best with your strategy. Make sure you have as much of a clear view as possible of
the process and costs involved with setting up. It is wise to double and triple check everything before
making a commitment as ending that commitment can be more challenging than you imagined. Be
sure that you can afford the time and cost it may take to have the business established and before
it starts to generate revenues. Familiarise yourself with all relevant regulations.
5. Be patient. Everything relating to setting up and doing business may take longer time than you
are used to. Business can at times be concluded at a slower pace, however, do also try to evaluate
that this is the case in your circumstances and that you are not just wasting time. In any case, never
try to rush anyone, be calm and patient.
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SECTORS OF INTEREST
Oil and Gas
Although the UAE is investing heavily in other sectors to reduce its reliance on hydrocarbons, oil
remains the driving force of the economy. State owned, Abu Dhabi National Oil Company – ADNOC
has 14 subsidiaries and it operates two refineries in Ruwais and Umm al Nar.
Statistics by the Energy Information Administration (EIA) suggest the UAE holds the 8th place in oil
production and has proven reserves of 97.8b barrels in 2016. 94% of these reserves are located in
Abu Dhabi. The oil output for 2016 stood at 3,7m barrels per day. ADNOC is developing a number
of its fields and reservoirs to increase their production capacity with specific output targets set for
each of them. A few of its offshore fields will also go through expansion.
As far as gas, although the UAE has proven reserves of 6,091 billion cubic meters, it has been
importing gas to meet its energy needs from Qatar through the Dolphin pipeline. This is both due
to the high content of sulfur, resulting in locally produced gas being used primarily for reinjection
into its oil fields as part of EOR techniques, but also due to the increasing demand for electricity.
There is a number of Norwegian companies from this sector established in the region. Statoil in
particular is well established. Norway similarly to the UAE has a history in oil and gas and there is
a number of solutions developed in Norway that could prove useful for the UAE.
Links:
https://www.cia.gov/library/publications/the-world-factbook/geos/ae.html
https://www.eia.gov/beta/international
http://www.adnoc.ae/
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Renewable Energy
Just like rest of the GCC countries, the UAE is among the highest per capita greenhouse gas
emitters. 80% of current energy needs are met through natural gas, much of which, since 2008 is
imported from Qatar through the Dolphin pipeline.
Although renewable energy currently comes at a higher cost, both Dubai and Abu Dhabi have plans
to satisfy local energy demands through solar power. Renewables are expected to help as part of
diversifying the economy, reducing reliance on hydrocarbons and ensuring a competitive role in the
energy market in the long term.
According to the National Human Resources Development and Employment Authority the UAE’s
population doubles approximately every 8.7 years resulting in a higher demand for energy every year.
Studies by a UAE government report that demand for energy is increasing at a rate of 9% per year and
forecasts indicate it could reach and possibly exceed 50GW by 2030. Electricity and water consumption
is currently subsidized as part of the social contract and considered necessary for development. Despite
being rich in reserves there is an increasing struggle to keep supporting the subsidy.
An investment of a total of $73bn is expected in the next five years in the Gulf countries to increase
power capacity and improve transmission which includes smart grids. Abu Dhabi has set a target of 7%
electricity generated from renewables by 2020, a total of 1500 MW and Dubai of 5% by 2030, 1000 MW.
In line with this target, Abu Dhabi has plans to build the world’s largest solar power plant. It will
produce 1,177MW of power and will be completed in the second quarter of 2019. The project will
cost $872m and will occupy a space of 7.8 km2.
With the win of the Expo 2020 and the subtheme on “Sustainability – Lasting sources of energy
and water” Dubai has set an additional target to produce 50MW of electricity for the operation of
the event using on-site renewable sources. This will be achieved through the installation of 200,000
solar panels worth $100m.
Concentrated Solar Power and Photovoltaics are the methods that have been constructed so far.
Wind energy is also considered with a 28MW plant approved. Waste to Energy methods are also
being considered. In addition to renewables, Nuclear Energy will play a role in a sustainable energy
mix where 25% of the country needs will be met with this method. Construction of the UAE’s first
Nuclear station with four reactors was completed this year and will begin operatiing in 2018.
Technologies that can be of interest to the UAE and the GCC region overall include, cleaning and
dust removal, technologies that perform better at high temperatures, high humidity and high diffuse
light conditions as well as receivers, pipes, insulation, thermal storage media for CSP.
Links:
Abu Dhabi Water and Electricity Authority: http://www.adwea.com/en/home.aspx
Dubai Electricity and Water Authority: http://www.dewa.gov.ae/default.aspx
Emirates Nuclear Energy Corporation: http://www.enec.gov.ae
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Waste Management
The great extent of available land to use as landfill combined with its low costs have prevented
recycling from being fully implemented in the UAE and the rest of the GCC countries. According to
a study performed by the Centre of Waste Management Abu Dhabi in 2010, the emirate generates
between 1.8 and 2.4kg of domestic waste per capita per day. Estimates from Dubai indicate similar
domestic waste production. In addition, a study by the Environment Agency Abu Dhabi in 2009
suggests that waste from construction amounts to around 5.8kg per capita per day.
Waste management is a relatively new concept in the region, but new initiatives are being launched
and ongoing campaigns aim at raising public awareness. Limited control of waste transportation
and treatment, disposal of waste in landfills and limited monitoring of waste generation leading
to waste data being unavailable are key challenges the UAE is planning to address in order to
establish efficient waste management systems.
Around 20-25% of Dubai and Abu Dhabi’s waste is recycled. There is limited waste segregation at
collection as well as limited control and enforcement of waste production. As much as 80% of the
UAE’s waste ends up in landfills most of which are below international standards and lack basic
environmental safeguards.
A large percentage of waste has been reported to derive from construction (~60%.). According to
the waste management department at Dubai Municipality, food accounts for 33% of waste in Dubai.
During the month of Ramadan, this has has been found to increase to up to 55%. A survey has
found that 78% of UAE residents throw food weekly if not daily.
Solutions for the applications for the reduction, reuse, recycling, recovery and correct disposal of
waste would help the UAE in managing more efficiently the waste generated.
Links:
Centre for Waste Management Abu Dhabi:
http://www.cwm.ae/
Emirates Environmental Group
http://eeg-uae.org/
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Water Management
The UAE is among the highest water consumers in the world. Indoor use stands at over 500 litres
per capita with an additional 600 litres used for landscaping alone. As fresh water sources are
scarce, all non-agriculture uses are served through desalination of seawater, making the UAE
the second largest desalination producer. The dominant method (>90%) is thermal desalination,
however reverse osmosis is gaining ground. The UAE produced 1.7bm3 in 2011 according to the
Abu Dhabi Environment Authority.
The UAE needs to develop scalable and economical energy and water resources that are
sustainable as water demand has been forecasted to exceed 6mgd (million gallons per day) by
2030. Non-thermal desalination will need to be installed to match the rate of substitution of thermal
electricity generation by renewables.
As far as gray-water recycling systems there is still relatively limited re-use of treated wastewater
however they are becoming increasingly accepted. In the city of Abu Dhabi water demand is met
by less than 10% from treated wastewater according to 2012 figures by the Statistics Centre Abu
Dhabi.
Water derived by treatment of municipal wastewater can be used for irrigation and district cooling
centres, which costs much less compared to desalination and has the added benefit of reducing
energy consumption and carbon emissions, both topics of concern for the UAE.
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Seafood
A severe decline in fishing stocks reveled by an assessment carried out by the Environment Agency
Abu Dhabi has prompted the government to place restrictions, promote sustainable fishing and
increase awareness among the general public. The decline is a result of the exponential increase
in the UAE’s population, tourism and trade, resulting in a large demand for seafood. In addition,
according to WWF, over exploitation, coastal development and growing maritime traffic have had
an impact on local fisheries. Reports by the press suggest that consumption for seafood in the UAE
stood at 24kg for 2015 and predicted to exceed 900,000 tonnes by 2030.
Overfishing in the region has caused a dramatic impact on the population of favoured local species
such as hammour and hammour (a member of the grouper family) and kingfish. As a result, around
three quarters of the UAE’s demands for seafood are met through imports including some Norwegian
seafood products which are known for their quality. A practical and current solution to this problem,
and to meet the country’s high demand for seafood, is the development of aquaculture, which is
being actively promoted by the Fisheries Department. There is still a lot of potential for development
as current offer by fish farms does not meet demand.
Around three quarters of the UAE’s demands for seafood are met through imports including some
Norwegian seafood products which are known for their quality as a few are currently being exported
to the region. A practical and current solution to the above problem, and with regards to the country’s
high demand for seafood, is the development of aquaculture, which is being actively promoted by
the Fisheries Department. There is still a lot of room for development as current offer by fish farms
does not meet demand.

Maritime
The UAE maritime sector is thriving . In recent years an increasing number of foreign companies
have established offices in the country. The full range of services are available, from imports
and exports of goods, through to ship building, repair and refueling. There are even free zones
established specifically for the maritime industry, namely Dubai Maritime City and Hamriya Free
Zone.
The industry is strengthened by the presence of the UAE Shipping Association, whose aim is to
develop partnerships between suppliers and buyers and interact with government authorities.
The port of Jebel Ali is the largest man-made harbor in the world and can accommodate any size
ship. It currently has a capacity of 14m TEU however when its current expansion is completed, its
capacity will reach 19m TEU. It will also have the capability to handle 10 of the mega container
ships that carry 18,000 container boxes.
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Technology
The GCC is among the three fastest growing IT markets after Latin America and Eastern Europe.
Demand is increasing with software expected by Omnix International, a Dubai-based system
integrator, to increase by 10.3% and hardware by 7.1% in the years between 2014 and 2019.
This growth is driven by sectors such as oil and gas, banking and finance, tourism, utilities,
telecommunications and government services that are looking for solutions within cloud computing,
mobile platforms as well as software helping with social media. Within the GCC, the UAE and Saudi
Arabia are the largest markets.
Investments are being made into e-government services and also m-government - services
through mobile platforms. In the 2016 Networked Readiness Index, the UAE ranked first among
Arab countries and 26th globally. It also ranked 1st in mobile coverage and 11th in availability of
latest technologies. Expenditure on IT reahed $16b in 2016.
A number of global ICT companies have established regional headquarters in Dubai such as
Microsoft, IBM, Oracle, Siemens, HP, Dell, Canon, Sony Ericsson, Cisco and more.
Links:
http://www.dubaiinternetcity.com/
http://www.dubaimediacity.com/
http://www.dsoa.ae/en/index.jsp

Tourism
Tourism in particular has received heavy investment for the development of sports facilities, leisure
parks, and centers for international conferences and events. New markets are being targeted with
new products and offers introduced. The country’s airlines are also rapidly expanding globally, and
thereby facilitating the UAE’s aim of becoming a key tourism and trade hub.
According to the Dubai Department of Tourism and Commerce Marketing, 14.9m tourists visited
Dubai in 2016 and 83.6m passengers used Dubai International Airport alone. With the win of the
Expo 2020, Dubai is preparing to receive 25m tourists for the six month event. It is estimated that
approximately $9b will be spent to fund Dubai’s growth plans for the Expo as huge technological
investments will be required to accommodate such a number of participants. 80,000 hotel rooms
are expected to be added to current capacity to handle the influx.
Tourism
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LIFE IN THE UAE
Visas and Work Permits
Visit Visas
All visitors must have a visa to enter the UAE. The type of visa depends on the purpose of the
visit. Visitors from the GCC, USA, most European countries and a few others are given a 90 day
visa on arrival. Citizens or holders of Norwegian passports are exempted from UAE Entry Visa
Requirements, according to reciprocity. They may stay for a maximum period of 90 days in any
180 – day period.
Other nationalities require sponsorship from either a UAE resident or a legal entity. Almost any UAE
based organisation can sponsor a visitor, and hotels and travel agents normally offer such services
for tourists. A refundable guarantee is usually required. Business visitors can be sponsored by an
employer with a business license, such as a branch office, free zone entity or entity registered
under the Companies Law. Individuals residing in the UAE can sponsor relatives and friends under
specific guidelines. The sponsor applies for the visa on the visitor’s behalf.
Current information on visa requirements is published on the website of the Ministry of Foreign
Affairs:
http://www.mofa.gov.ae/mofa_english/portal/79e01fed-3501-4ebb-accd-9e27950433a7.aspx

Residency Visas
Expatriates who are employed by a UAE company are sponsored for a residency visa by their
employer. This visa is valid for three years and renewable every three years. The employee in turn
can sponsor any close family members.
Each type of visa has different requirements however all types need the following:
• Valid passport or document that permits exit and return to country of residence
• The passport must be valid for at least 6 months
• Passport size photo
• Approval by authorities for purpose of visit / stay
• UAE resident sponsor (This can be local or foreign)
• There is no ban preventing the applicant from visiting the UAE
• The applicant has not been previously deported from the UAE
All residency visa applicants must go through blood and x-ray tests to check for HIV, Hepatitis
C and Tuberculosis. The test must be held at a government medical facility (called the Disease
Prevention & Screening Center). Results from tests done in other countries are not accepted. If the
test is positive, residency visa can be denied and the applicant can face deportation. This medical
test must be done every time the residency visa is due for renewal.
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The employer also provides health insurance for the employees and their dependents. This
insurance offers free or subsidized health care services.
In addition, it is obligatory for all UAE residents to obtain and carry with them at all times an Emirates
ID card. A registration form must be filled in first either at a typing centre or online which will be
followed by a visit to the registration centre to have the individual’s biometric data taken: an eye
scan, fingerprints and photo. Some centres are adjacent to the Disease Prevention & Screening
Center for efficiency to have the medical test and biometric data taken in the same day.
Further information on locations of registration centres can be found on the Emirates ID website:
http://www.id.gov.ae
Employees should be cautious of companies who ask as part of the conditions of employment to
deposit their passports with the company. Although it may be unlikely for a Norwegian citizen to
face such a case this practice is common and illegal under the UAE labour law.

Obtaining work while on a tourist or visit visa
Individuals on a tourist or visit visa are not allowed to work in the UAE. If an individual has already
entered the UAE, a probationary work permit should be obtained, valid for up to 3 months, from the
Ministry of Labour. If caught without a work permit the individual will not be able to use the Ministry
of Labour in the event of a dispute with the employer and risks jail sentence, fined and deported. In
addition they may be blacklisted and not allowed to return to the UAE.
The employer who acts as the sponsor should in the meantime begin the process to obtain the
residency visa. The process cannot be completed before the employment contract is registered
with the Ministry of Labour.
Up to date information on obtaining work permits can be requested by the Ministry of Labour:
http://www.mol.gov.ae/NewMolGateway/english/newIndex.aspx
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Living in the UAE
Transport
Local bus services are available and are constantly improved to meet the increasing demand by a
larger part of the population.
Taxis can be a preferred way of transport as they are readily available and much cheaper than in
Europe. For example, a taxi from Dubai to Abu Dhabi, a distance of approximately 130km costs
between 40-50 euro each way.
The Dubai Metro has been operational since 2009. It is a driverless automated metro rail network
that runs on elevated viaducts and underground. It currently has two lines with three more planned
in the coming years.
Rental cars are also available and can be rented upon presentation of a passport and driving
license. Expatriates however with a residency visa need to obtain a UAE driving license. This
process normally involves presenting a driving license translated into Arabic, passport and UAE
visa. One point to be aware of is that the passport and license must be issued by the same country.
Links:
http://metro.rtaprojects.me/

Accommodation
A variety of housing options have been developed in the UAE, from separate villas, villas in
compounds with facilities such as swimming pool and gym and apartments. All types of housing
have air conditioning installed either centrally or individually as temperatures in the summer can
reach as high as 50o.
Salary packages offer housing allowance and the amount depends on the position occupied within
the organization. Rents also depend on size and location of housing and can vary from $30,000 to
$70,000 for mid-level executives to $50,000 – 100,000 per year for a higher quality apartment or
villa. Rents are normally paid annually, however more flexible terms are slowly being introduced.
In some emirates, non-UAE nationals may own real estate on a leasehold basis that is normally up
to 50 years. Some emirates however, do not allow foreign ownership and others only depending
on nationality.
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Healthcare
The standard of health care in the UAE is generally high. All residents have health insurance
and hold a medical card. For expatriate employees and their dependents this is provided by their
employers. This insurance offers free or subsidized health care services.
The UAE has introduced a national control programme to control entry of HIV into the country and
prevent transmission. All expatriates arriving to the emirates must pass a medical test for HIV,
hepatitis and tuberculosis before residency can be approved.
Some prescription drugs and over the counter medicines are not allowed in the UAE. If an original
prescription or doctor’s letter is submitted, a supply of 12 months is permitted for a resident and of
3 months for a visitor. To ensure a medication is permitted in the UAE, the customer service centre
of the Drug Control Department may be contacted to enquire is the drug is in the controlled list.
Dubai Health Care City, the world’s first healthcare free zone aims to provide high quality healthcare
services, medical education and research in one place. It is divided in two communities, the
Medical Community, focusing on clinical services for treatment and prevention of disease and the
Wellness Community, within which the entire range of wellness services are found, from hospitals
and outpatient clinics through to luxury spa resorts.

Education
The Ministry of Education regulates both private and public schools. Private English and American
schools have been established in the main urban areas which are normally staffed by expatriate
teachers. Other schools are available such as German and French schools.
Public education is free for children of UAE nationality and expatriate students may attend these
for a fee. Salary packages of employees with children normally include an education allowance to
cover the fees.
Education is compulsory for all UAE nationals up to the ninth grade. The educational system is
organized a follows:
Kindergarten
4 to 5 years old
Elementary
6 to 11 years old
Intermediate
12 to 14 years old
Secondary
15 to 17 years old
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A number of universities and other educational organisations offering higher diplomas and degrees
have been established, many with international accreditation. Most teaching takes place in
the English language with the exception of UAE University in Al Ain which is in Arabic only. As
opposed to expatriates UAE nationals do not pay tuition fees. Reputable universities, such as New
York University and Sorbonne have established chapters in Abu Dhabi. Other institutions have
collaborative programmes such as that of Masdar Institute with MIT.

Banking
Banks and their activities, such as offering loans, credit and monetary policies etc. are regulated
by the UAE Central Bank. The local currency of the UAE, the Arab Emirate Dirham is pegged to
the US Dollar at a rate of AED 3.673: US$ 1. Visit the following currency converter for the current
conversion rate with NOK: http://www.visitnorway.com/no/om-norge/reisefakta/before-you-go/
currency-and-prices/valutakalkulator/
Banks in the UAE offer similar services as in the western world. The familiar current and savings
accounts may be opened in addition to term deposit accounts which offer higher interest rates than
a savings account with the difference that they do not allow instant access to savings.
Debit and credit cards are widely used as well as cheques. The latter is used frequently for paying
bills and for making large payments. It should be noted however that bouncing a cheque is a
criminal offence in the UAE and can result in fines and criminal prosecution. Most banks also offer
internet banking with secure online access to accounts and easy money transfers abroad. All UAE
banks offer ATM machines and the machine of any bank can be used for banking transactions. If
an ATM of another bank is used a small fee may be charged.
Apart from conventional banking, a type of banking that is particular to the region is Islamic banking.
As the term implies, this type of activity is in accordance with the principles of Sharia, the moral
code of Islam, and applying it practically through the development of Islamic economics. Therefore,
investment in businesses that provide goods or services that are contrary to Islam’s religious law
is prohibited.
To open an individual account, proof of UAE residency and a copy of the passport is required.
Some banks may require a letter from the employer confirming employment and the salary.
Opening a UAE bank account for a company is linked to opening the company itself so the two
usually happen at the same time and depend on each other.
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Taxation and VAT
Income tax is not applicable on individuals in the UAE. There are also no sales or corporate taxes
except for a rate of up to 55% for oil and gas companies on UAE sourced income and 20% for
branches of foreign banks.
Depending on the emirate, hotel services are subject to tax ranging from 5% to 10% and most
emirates impose a municipal tax at rates between 2.5% and 10% on rent paid for commercial and
residential premises. A further 15AED fee per night is applied.
VAT is being implement as from 1st January 2018 at a rate of 5%. Businesses will be required
to keep records of their activities and transactions. Companies with an annual turnover of more
than AED375,000 (~ $100,000) are mandated to register, whereas companies with revenue below
AED375,000 but over AED187,500 will have an option to register if they wish but do not have to
collect VAT from their customers.
Industries and products within education, healthcare and staple foods items will not be taxed.

Daily Dress Code
The UAE is a multicultural society so a wide range of clothing can be seen from western to bright
African gowns and Indian style outfits. The place, event, location (such as which Emirate), and the
people that may be around should be considered when choosing what to wear. It is advisable to
carry a scarf to cover exposed shoulders.
Heat is a big issue so fabrics should be light but not transparent. However, there is air conditioning
everywhere which can make closed areas such as malls particularly cold.
It is generally advisable to observe local standards of modesty. Men should avoid wearing shorts in
public places and women should avoid revealing or transparent clothes that expose the shoulders,
legs and cleavage. A good rule is if the sleeves are short, the trousers or skirt should be long and
vice versa. The Northern Emirates are the most conservative, and Abu Dhabi is considered more
conservative than Dubai.
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Leisure
As the number of expatriates and tourists has been increasing over the years, a wide range of
recreational, leisure, cultural and entertainment options have been developed.
Dubai is famous for its malls and shopping facilities which are widely spread throughout the city.
Souqs – traditional markets can also be found and offer a more traditional taste of the local culture.
Entertainment facilities such as cinemas can be found in most malls. There are also a few museums
and theatres. Various events and festivals are organized both for adults and children as well as
concerts by big name entertainers.
Bars and restaurants offer a wide selection of cuisines. Alcohol is generally only available in bars
and restaurants at hotels.
Mall of the Emirates, boasts indoor skiing facilities Desert safaris, camel racing, camping, dinner
cruises, are all alternatives for a fun weekend. Furthermore, the UAE’s location offers a base to
explore nearby countries.
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USEFUL LINKS IN THE UAE
Royal Norwegian Embassy
Royal Norwegian Embassy in Abu Dhabi – http://www.norway.ae
Royal Norwegian Embassy in Abu Dhabi facebook page – https://www.facebook.com/
norwegianembassyuae

Royal Norwegian Consulate
Royal Norwegian Consulate in Dubai – http://www.norway.ae/Embassy/Consulates/The-RoyalNorwegian-Consulate-in-Dubai-/

Innovation Norway
Innovation Norway in Abu Dhabi – http://www.innovasjonnorge.no/no/kontorer-i-utlandet/deforente-arabiske-emirater/

Norwegian Energy Partners - NORWEP
NORWEP – http://www.norwep.com/Market-info/Markets/United-Arab-Emirates

The Norwegian Business Council
The Norwegian Business Council in Dubai – http://www.nbcuae.org

The Norwegian Seamen’s Centre
The Norwegian Seamen’s Centre in Dubai – http://sjomannskirken.no/dubai

Business Councils
Afghan Business Council – http://www.abcdxb.com
American Business Council – http://www.abcdubai.com
Australian Business Council – http://www.abc-dxb.com
Austrian Business Council – http://www.abc-jpn.org
British Business Group – http://britbiz-uae.com
British Business Group Abu Dhabi – http://www.britishbusiness.org
Bulgarian Business Council – http://www.bulgaria-dubai.com
Canadian Business Council – www.cbc-dubai.com
Danish Business Council – http://www.danesindubai.com
Egyptian Business Council – http://www.ebc-dubai.org
Finnish Business Council – http://www.fbc.org.ae
French Business Council – http://www.fbcdubai.com
German Business Council – http://www.gbc-dubai.com
Indian Business & Professional Council – http://www.ibpcdubai.com
Iranian Business Council – http://www.ibcuae.org

49

Iraqi Business Council – http://www.ibcad.com
Italian Business Council – http://www.ibcdubai.ae
Japanese Business Council – http://www.jetro.go.jp/jetro/overseas/ae_dubai/jbc
Jordanian Business Council – http://www.jbc.org.ae
Lebanese Business Council – http://www.lbcdubai.com
Malaysian Business Council – http://malaysianbizcouncil.blogspot.com
Netherlands Business Council – http://www.nbcdubai.com
Nigerian Business Council – http://www.nbguae.com
Pakistan Business Council – http://www.pbcdubai.com
Philippines Business Council – http://www.philippinebusiness.org
Senegal Business & Professional Council – http://www.senbpc.com
Singaporean Business Council – http://www.sbcuae.org
South African Business Council – http://www.sabco-uae.org
Spanish Business Council – http://www.spanishbusinesscouncil.ae
Sri Lankan Business Council – http://www.lankabiz.org
Sudanese Business Council – http://www.turkey-now.org
Swedish Business Council – http://www.swedchamb.com
Swiss Business Council – http://www.swissbcuae.com
Syrian Business Council – http://www.dubaisyria.com
Syrian Business Council – http://www.dubaisyria.com
Turkish Business Council – http://www.tbcuae.org
Uganda Business Council – http://www.africa-business.com/features/uganda_business-council.html
USUAE Business Council – http://www.usuaebusiness.org

Free Zones
Abu Dhabi
Abu Dhabi Airport Business City – http://www.businesscity.ae/english
Abu Dhabi Global Market – https://www.adgm.com
Abu Dhabi Ports Company – http://www.adpc.ae
Higher corporation for specialized economic zones/ ZonesCorp – http://www.zonescorp.com
Khalifa Industrial Zone - KIZAD – http://kizad.com/en
Masdar City – http://www.masdar.ae
TwoFour54 – http://www.twofour54.com/en

Ajman
Ajman Free Zone – http://www.ajmanfreezone.gov.ae

Dubai

Dubai Airport Free Zone Authority (DAFZA) – http://www.dafza.gov.ae
Dubai Auto Zone – http://www.uaefreezones.com/fz_dubai_auto_zone.html
Dubai Flower Centre – http://www.uaefreezones.com/fz_dubai_flower_center.html
Dubai Gold & Diamond Park – http://www.goldanddiamondpark.com
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Dubai Healthcare City – http://freezonesuae.com/dubai_health_care_city_fze.htm
Dubai Industrial City - http://www.dubaiindustrialpark.ae
Dubai International Academic City – http://www.diacedu.ae
Dubai International Financial Center – http://www.difc.ae
Dubai Internet City - http://www.dubaiinternetcity.com
Dubai Knowledge Village – http://www.kv.ae
Dubai Logistics City – http://www.uaefreezones.com/fz_dubai_logistics_city.html
Dubai Maritime City – http://www.uaefreezones.com/fz_dubai_maritime_city.html
Dubai Media City – http://www.dubaimediacity.com
Dubai Multi Commodity Centre – http://www.dmcc.ae
Dubai Outsource Zone – http://www.doz.ae
Dubai Production City – http://www.dpc.ae
Dubai Science Park – http://www.dsp.ae
Dubai Silicon Oasis – http://www.dsoa.ae
Dubai Studio City – http://www.dubaistudiocity.ae
Dubai Textile City – http://texmas.com/dubai-textile-city
Energy and Environment Park – http://www.enpark.ae
International Media Production Zone – http://www.impz.ae
International Humanitarian City – http://www.uaefreezones.com/fz_dubai_aid_city.html
Jebel Ali Free Zone Authority – http://www.jafza.co.ae
Jumeirah Lakes Towers Free Zone – https://www.jlt.ae
National Industries Complex – http://vitaluae.com/national-industries-complex

Fujairah
Fujairah Freezone Authority – http://www.fujairahfreezone.com
Fujairah Creative City – http://www.creativecity.ae

Sharjah
Hamriyah Freezone – http://www.hamriyahfz.com
Sharjah Airport International Freezone – http://www.saif-zone.com
USA Regional Trade Center Free Zone – http://www.usartc.com

Ras al Khaimah
Ras Al Khaimah Free Trade Zone – http://www.rakiftz.com
RAK Investment Authority – http://www.rak-ia.com
RAK Maritime City – https://www.rakports.ae/rmc.php

Umm Al Quwain
Umm Al Quwain Free Zone Authority – http://uaqftz.com
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Government Departments
Abu Dhabi
Abu Dhabi Accountability Authority (ADAA) – http://adaa.gov.ae
Abu Dhabi Airports Company (ADAC) – http://www.adac.ae
Abu Dhabi Authority for Culture & Heritage (ADACH) – http://www.adach.ae
Abu Dhabi Chamber of Commerce & Industry (ADCCI) – http://www.abudhabichamber.ae
Abu Dhabi City – http://www.abudhabi.com
Abu Dhabi Council for Economic Development (ADCED) – http://www.adced.ae
Abu Dhabi Customs Administration – http://www.auhcustoms.gov.ae
Abu Dhabi Distribution Company (ADDC) – http://www.addc.ae
Abu Dhabi Education Council (ADEC) – http://www.adec.ac.ae
Abu Dhabi Educational Zone (ADEZ) – http://www.adez.ae
Abu Dhabi Food Control Authority (ADFCA) – http://www.adfca.ae
Abu Dhabi Fund for Development (ADFD) – http://www.adfd.ae
Abu Dhabi Future Energy Company (MASDAR) – http://www.masdar.ae
Abu Dhabi General Services (Musanada) – http://www.musanada.co.ae
Abu Dhabi Health Services Company (SEHA) – http://www.seha.ae
Abu Dhabi Investment Council (The Council) – http://www.adcouncil.ae
Abu Dhabi Judicial Department (ADJD) – http://www.adjd.gov.ae
Abu Dhabi Media Company (ADMC) – http://www.admedia.ae
Abu Dhabi Motors Club (ADMC) – http://www.admc.ae
Abu Dhabi National Exhibitions Company (ADNEC) – http://www.adnec.ae
Abu Dhabi National Oil Company (ADNOC) – http://www.adnoc.ae
Abu Dhabi Naturalization & Residency Directorate (ADNRD) – http://www.abudhabi.ae
Abu Dhabi Ports Company (ADPC) – http://www.adpc.ae
Abu Dhabi Retirement Pensions & Benefits Fund (ADRPBF) – http://www.pension.gov.ae
Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (ADX) – http://www.adx.ae
Abu Dhabi Sewerage Services Company (ADSSC) – http://www.adssc.ae
Abu Dhabi Sports Council (ADSC) – http://www.adsc.ae
Abu Dhabi Systems & Information Centre (ADSIC) – http://adsic.abudhabi.ae
Abu Dhabi Tawteen Council (ADTC) – http://tawteencouncil.ae
Abu Dhabi Tourism Authority (ADTA) – http://www.abudhabitourism.ae/en/default.aspx
Abu Dhabi Tourism Authority (ADTA) – http://www.abudhabitourism.ae
Abu Dhabi Urban Planning Council (UPC) – http://www.upc.gov.ae
Abu Dhabi Water & Electricity Authority – http://www.adwec.ae
Abu Dhabi Water & Electricity Authority (ADWEA) – http://www.adwea.ae
Advanced Technology Investment Company (ATIC) – http://www.advancedtechnologyic.com
Al Ain Distribution Company (AADC) – http://www.aadc.ae
Central Bank of the UAE (CBUAE) – http://www.centralbank.ae
Chamber of Commerce & Industry - Abu Dhabi – http://www.abudhabichamber.ae
Critical National Infrastructure Authority (CNIA) – http://www.cnia.ae
Department of Economic Development (DED) – http://ded.abudhabi.ae
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Department of Finance (DOF) – http://dof.abudhabi.ae
Department of Municipal Affairs - Al Ain City Municipality (AAM) – http://am.abudhabi.ae
Department of Municipal Affairs - Municipality of Abu Dhabi City (ADM) – http://am.abudhabi.ae
Department of Municipal Affairs - Western Region Municipality (WRM) – http://www.wrm.ae
Department of Municipal Affairs (DMA) – http://www.dma.abudhabi.ae
Department of Transport (DOT) – http://dot.abudhabi.ae
Emirates Authority for Standardization & Metrology (ESMA) – http://www.esma.ae
Emirates Center for Strategic Studies and Research (ECSSR) – http://www.ecssr.ac.ae
Emirates Identity Authority (EIDA) – http://www.emiratesid.ae
Emirates Mars Mission – http://www.emiratesmarsmission.ae
Emirates Nuclear Energy Corporation (ENEC) – http://www.enec.gov.ae
Emirates Telecommunications Corporation (Etisalat) – http://www.etisalat.ae
Environment Agency - Abu Dhabi (EAD) – http://www.ead.ae
Executive Affairs Authority (EAA) – http://www.eaa.abudhabi.ae
Family Development Foundation (FDF) – http://www.fdf.ae
Federal e-Government Abu Dhabi – http://www.government.ae/gov/en/gov/federal/mohe.jsp
General Authority of Youth and Sports Welfare – http://www.uaeyouthsports.com
General Civil Aviation Authority (GCAA) – http://www.gcaa.ae
General Directorate of Abu Dhabi Police (ADP) – http://www.adpolice.gov.ae
General Information Authority (GIA) – http://www.gia.gov.ae
Health Authority - Abu Dhabi (HAAD) – http://www.haad.ae
Higher Corporation for Specialized Economic Zones (ZonesCorp) – http://www.zonescorp.com
Marriage Fund (MF) – http://www.zawaj.ae
Media Zone Authority (twofour54) – http://www.twofour54.com
Military Survey Department (MSD) – http://www.uaesurvey.ae
Ministry of Culture, Youth and Community Development (MCYCD) – http://www.mcycd.ae
Ministry of Economy, Abu Dhabi – http://www.economy.ae
Ministry of Justice Abu Dhabi – http://www.government.ae/gov/en/gov/federal/moj.js
Ministry of Labour Abu Dhabi – http://www.mol.gov.ae
Ministry of Planning Abu Dhabi UAE – http://www.uae.gov.ae/Ministries/mop.htm
Ministry of Presidential Affairs (MOPA) – http://www.mopa.ae
Ministry of State for Happiness – https://www.happy.ae/en
National Center for Documentation and Research (NCDR) – http://www.cdr.gov.ae
National Center of Meteorology & Seismology (NCMS) – http://www.ncms.ae
National Consultative Council (NCC) – http://www.ncc.ae
National Crisis and Emergency Management Authority (NCEMA) – http://www.ncema.ae
National Rehabilitation Center (NRC) – http://www.nrc.ae
Red Crescent Authority – http://www.rcuae.ae
Regulation and Supervision Bureau (The Bureau) – http://www.rsb.gov.ae
Ruler’s Representative Court of the Western Region (RRCWR) – http://www.rrcwr.gov.ae
Statistics Center - Abu Dhabi – http://www.scad.ae
Telecommunications Regulatory Authority (TRA) – http://www.tra.gov.ae
The Center of Waste Management (CWM) – http://www.cwm.ae
The Centre for Regulation of Transport by Hire Cars (TransAD) – http://www.transad.ae
The Federal National Council (FNC) – http://www.almajles.gov.ae
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Tourism Development & Investment Company (TDIC) – http://www.tdic.ae
Western Region Development Council (WRDC) – http://www.wrdc.ae

Ajman
Ajman Chamber of Commerce – http://www.ajcci.co.ae
Civil Aviation Department – http://www.dubaiairport.com
Chamber of Commerce & Industry – http://www.ajmanchamber.ae/en/home

Al Ain
Agriculture & Animal Production (Al Ain) – http://www.ead.ae/en/en-us/agriculture.aspx

Dubai
Dubai Dept of Economic Development – http://www.dubaided.gov.ae
Chamber of Commerce & Industry - Dubai Chamber – http://www.dubaichamber.ae
Civil Aviation Department – http://www.dubaiairport.com
Department of Economic Development – http://www.dubaided.gov.ae
Department of Tourism and Industry – http://www.dubaitourism.co.ae
Dept of HH the Ruler’s Affairs and Protocol Affairs – http://old.protocol.dubai.ae
Dubai Awqaf & Islamic Affairs – http://www.awqafdubai.gov.ae
Dubai Cargo Village – http://www.dubaicargovillage.com
Dubai Chamber of Commerce and Industries – http://www.dcci.ae
Dubai Civil Defence – http://www.dcd.gov.ae
Dubai Customs – http://www.dxbcustoms.gov.ae
Dubai Development Board – http://www.dubaidb.gov.ae
Dubai Economic Development Department – http://www.dubaided.gov.ae
Dubai Electricity & Water Authority – http://www.dewa.gov.ae
Dubai Government Information and Services Portal – http://www.dubai.ae
Dubai Municipality Portal – http://www.dm.gov.ae
Dubai Naturalisation & Residency – http://www.dnrd.gov.ae
Dubai Police Headquarters – http://www.dubaipolice.gov.ae
Dubai Ports and Customs – http://www.dxbcustoms.gov.ae
Dubai Ports Authority – http://www.dpworld.ae
Dubai School of Government – http://www.dsg.ae
Dubai Traffic Police – http://www.dxbtraffic.gov.ae
Government of Dubai Land Department – http://www.dubailand.gov.ae
Government of Dubai – http://www.dubai.ae/en.portal
Industrial Dept & Dir of Industrial Property – http://www.uae.gov.ae

Emirates
Cultural Foundation – http://www.adach.ae/en/default.aspx
Department of Economic Development – http://www.dubaided.gov.ae
Emirates Media – http://www.emirates-media.com
Fed Tec – http://www.fedtec.net
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Federal Bank – http://www.federalbank.co.in
Federal e-Government portal Ministry of Finance UAE – http://www.government.ae/gov/en/gov/
federal/mofi.jsp
Federal Environmental Agency – http://www.fea.gov.ae
Federal Government Website, UAE – http://www.uae.gov.ae
Federal National Council – http://www.almajles.gov.ae
Federal National Council UAE – http://www.almajles.gov.ae
Gen. Directorate of Civil Defence – http://www.gdocd.gov.ae
Manpower United Arab Emirates – http://www.manpower-me.com
Ministry for Cabinet Affairs – http://www.uae.gov.ae/moca
Ministry for Foreign Affairs – http://www.mofa.gov.ae
Ministry of Agriculture & Fisheries – http://www.uae.gov.ae/maf
Ministry of Communications – http://www.uae.gov.ae
Ministry of Defence – http://www.mod.gov.ae/en
Ministry of Economy – http://www.economy.gov.ae
Ministry of Education – http://www.education.gov.ae
Ministry of Energy – http://www.moenr.gov.ae
Ministry of Environment and Water – http://www.moew.gov.ae
Ministry of Finance & Industry – http://www.fedfin.gov.ae
Ministry of Foreign Affairs – http://www.uae.gov.ae
Ministry of Health – http://www.moh.gov.ae
Ministry of Higher Education and Scientific Research – http://www.mohesr.gov.ae/en/Pages/default.aspx
Ministry of Information & Culture – http://www.uae.gov.ae
Ministry of Interior – http://moi.gov.ae/en/default.aspx
Ministry of Justice – http://www.uae.gov.ae/moj
Ministry of Justice, Islamic Affairs and Awqaf – http://www.awqaf.gov.ae
Ministry of Labour – http://www.mol.gov.ae
Ministry of Public Works & Housing – http://www.mopw.gov.ae
Ministry of Social Affairs – http://www.msa.gov.ae/msa/en/pages/msahome.aspx
Ministry of State for Cabinet Affairs – http://www.uae.gov.ae/moca
Miracle Hands Ministry – http://www.miracle-hands.com
Nationality and Residence Airport – http://www.dnrd.gov.ae
UAE Administration Development Institute – http://www.dnrd.gov.ae
UAE Federal e-Government portal – http://www.government.ae
UAE General Information Authority – http://www.gia.gov.ae
UAE Government – http://www.uae.gov.ae
UAE Internet – http://www.uae-pages.com
UAE State Audit Institution – http://www.saiuae.gov.ae
US Commercial Service UAE – http://www.buyusa.gov/uae/en

Fujairah
Chamber of Commerce, Industry & Agriculture – http://www.fujcci.ae
Fujairah Municipality – http://www.fujairahmunc.gov.ae
Fujairah Tourism Bureau – http://www.fujairah-tourism.com
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Ras al Khaimah
Chamber of Commerce and Industry – http://www.rakchamber.ae
Ras Al Khaimah Municipality – http://www.rakmunicipality.com

Sharjah
Chamber of Commerce & Industry – http://www.sharjah-welcome.com
Sharjah Chamber of Commerce – http://www.sharjah.gov.ae
Sharjah Customs Dept – http://www.sharjahcustoms.gov.ae
Sharjah Electricity & Water Authority – http://www.sewa.gov.ae
Sharjah Municipality – http://www.shjmun.gov.ae
Sharjah Police General Directorate – http://www.shjpolice.gov.ae

Umm al Qwain
Chamber of Commerce and Industry – http://www.uaqcci.com
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